CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA
1412 9th St - Annex
January 09, 2025 @ 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

ROLL CALL:

DETERMINATION OF QUORUM:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING(S):

1. Minutes - December 12, 2024
OLD BUSINESS:

2. 2024 City of Leeds Comprehensive Plan
NEW BUSINESS:

3. 2025 - Election of Officers
PUBLIC ADDRESS:

OTHER BUSINESS:
CHAIRPERSON'S COMMUNICATION:
ADJOURNMENT:

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-699-2585.



File Attachments for ltem:

1. Minutes - December 12, 2024



CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES
1412 9th St - Annex
December 12, 2024 @ 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:
The meeting was called to order by Commissioner Cook at 5:00 PM
ROLL CALL:

PRESENT

Commissioner Edward Cook
Commissioner Ken Mudd
Commissioner Mike Cauble
Commissioner Dave Mackey
Commissioner Roland Isbell
Commissioner Kelly Washburn
Commissioner Brad Watson

DETERMINATION OF QUORUM:

Quorum determined.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING(S):
None presented.

OLD BUSINESS:

None.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. RA24-000001 - Subdivision - A request by Michael Myrick, applicant and property owner, for
preliminary plat approval of the Oliver Crossing S/D consisting of 64 lots at 1730 Jones St,

35094, Zoned PCD, St Clair Co, TPID(s): 2605161001040000,
2605161001037000,2605161001029000 & 2605161001042000

City of Leeds Legal council gave a summary of the history regarding the case.

Keith Hegar city engineer made a short statement on the case.

Mr. Watson stated that the required level of review involves both the city engineer and the
applicants' engineers providing statements on the plat, signing, and sealing it to confirm that
the project complies with all city regulations.

Levie Hitt with inside engineering spoke representing the property owner and applicant.
The statement made by the representative indicates a commitment to ensure compliance with
all relevant regulations.



Betty Cook - 1628 Windsor Lane - Stated she had concerns regarding heavy equipment
across the bridge.

Jeffery Lyons - 8567 Covington Way - Had concerns regarding having only one way in and
out of the subdivision.

Johnnie Yarbrough - 8569 Dover Dr - Had concerns about safety regarding school buses,
people walking, and cars parked on side of road. Concerns about water draining from Winsor
Dr into her yard when it rains.

Jerry Trott - 8532 Covington Way - Had concerns about one entrance and exit for the
subdivision and the bridge on Jones Road.

Legal Council Barnett reminded the board that the bridge on Jones road is privately owned.

Susan Carswell - 2120 Montevallo Road - She suggested a grant be found to cover some of
the cost to repair the bridge.

Allen Kizzire - 8552 Dover Drive - Concerns about traffic, heavy equipment, and water
drainage.

Motion made by Commissioner Mackey - Subject to engineer comments, recommendations,
and subdivision regulations.

Seconded by Commissioner Mudd.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Cook, Commissioner Mudd, Commissioner Cauble, Commissioner
Mackey, Commissioner Washburn
Voting Abstaining: Commissioner Watson

Motion Passed.

SA21-000008 - A request to rescind the stipulation requiring sidewalks in the Rockhampton
Phase 1 & 2 S/D. Site Only: 1250 Maitland Rd, Jefferson County.

Luke Blankenship - 1250 Maitlan Rd - Site engineer spoke about how difficult it is to make the
sidewalks ADA compliant.

Keith Hagar city engineer spoke on the sidewalk issues.
The steepness of the hill is the issue causing it not to be ADA compliant.
Susan Carswell - 2120 Montevallo Road - She is for the sidewalks.

Motion made by Commissioner Mackey - To approve the recension.
Seconded by Commissioner Mudd.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Cook, Commissioner Mudd, Commissioner Cauble, Commissioner
Mackey, Commissioner Washburn, Commissioner Watson

Motion passed.

2024 City of Leeds Comprehensive Plan
Matthew Tender - with GMC gave a presentation about the comprehensive plan.
Jacob Myer - 1527 Parnell - Concerns about rentals.

Patty Reaves - 1359 Montevallo Rd - Also had concerns about rentals.



Kristy Biddle - Stated she liked a part of the plan that revitalizes the downtown area.
Susan Carswell - 2120 Montevallo Road - Stated she only had one brief meeting with GMC.

Brian Bowman - 2056 Montevallo Road - Had concerns about the parts of the plan that
involved his properties.

Ronald Miller - 420 Grants Miller Ridge - Wanted to know how the comprehensive plan would
affect the Moton center.

Amber Yakel - 8028 4th Ave - Concerns with the new plan. She shares that her daily jog
through downtown puts her at risk of being hit by traffic.

Brandon Yakel - 8028 4th Ave - Asked for more things to do within the city for kids.

Mackey stepped out of meeting at 6:01PM
Kelly stepped out of meeting at 6:02PM
Both returned at 6:05PM

Motion made by Commissioner Watson - To table to nhext meeting.
Seconded by Commissioner Mudd.

Voting Yea: Commissioner Cook, Commissioner Mudd, Commissioner Cauble, Commissioner
Mackey, Commissioner Washburn, Commissioner Watson.

Motion approved.

PUBLIC ADDRESS:

OTHER BUSINESS:

CHAIRPERSON'S COMMUNICATION:

Wished everyone a Merry Christmas.

ADJOURNMENT:

Adjourned at 6:34PM

Motion made by Commissioner Washburn.

Mr. Edward Cook, Chairman Ms. Kelly Washburn, Secretary



File Attachments for ltem:

2. 2024 City of Leeds Comprehensive Plan



'IMAGINE LEEDS

2024 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ,




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Municipal Leadership

DAVID MILLER
mayor
KENNETH WASHINGTON
city council district 1
ERIC TURNER

city council district 2

Steering Committee

DAVID MILLER
BRAD WATSON
TOUSHI ARBITELLE
AUDREY BRYAN
GLEN WILLIAMS

LEEDS

ALABAMA

JOHNNY DUTTON

city council district 3
ANGIE LATTA

city council district 4
DeVORIS RAGLAND-PIERCE

city council district 5

JOHNNY WARREN
PATRICK SESSIONS
PAUL IRWIN
LAURA ROBERTS
CHUCK PARSONS

oM(.

4




TABLE OF CONTENTS

R A -0

iy T

Introduction

i

Welcome to Imagine Leeds

The Vision for Leeds

The Process

Community Engagement

Research + Analysis

The Plan

Imagine GROWTH

Imagine RECREATION

Imagine CONNECTION

Imagine UNITY




welcome to

[magine Leeds

A BETTER WAY FORWARD

This document lays out a detailed

plan for the future development of

the City of Leeds, Alabama over the
next 10 - 20 years. Read on to learn
more about the exciting prospects
for progress in this thriving

suburban community.

WHY THIS PLAN, WHY NOW?

Leeds is on a strong growth trajectory and with the
quickening pace of change and potential magnitude
of growth, the need for a comprehensive plan to
guide these coming changes has never been more
pressing. This plan serves as a roadmap for sustainable
development, addressing the unique challenges and
opportunities facing our community today. By focusing
on coordinated strategies for quality growth, we aim to
enhance the quality of life for all residents. In a rapidly
changing world, a forward-thinking comprehensive
plan will ensure that Leeds not only meets the needs
of its current residents but also prepares for future
generations, fostering a vibrant, resilient city that thrives

for years to come.

WHERE DO WE GO FROM HERE?

The success of this plan and ultimately the City of Leeds
depends on actionable steps and dedicated, ongoing
implementation of the plan's recommendations. It is
imperative that this remains a ‘living document’ instead
of gathering dust on a shelf. A vision for the city's future
has been created and a path to that future laid out. Now

is the time for action to ensure the city’s progress.

S—"

HOW THIS PLAN WORKS

DATA + COMMUNITY INPUT

POLICIES + ACTIONS

Keep an eye out for the
Imagine Leeds lightbulb...
it indicates a HIGH
public priority goal

VISION STATEMENT

A positive statement that outlines a lo

THEMATIC PRINCIPLES

A set of the fic

strategic approach for related goals. Provides a rationale for each goal.

THEMATIC GOALS

rt to fulfill both

a reality.

IMPLEMENTATION

d matrix ca




VISION +
PRINCIPLES

Leeds is an inclusive, community-

oriented city that boasts an exceptional

ualit t lie, resilient neighborhoods,

and a thriving economy. It is a vibrant
and exciting place to visit and for

residents and businesses to call home.

QUALITY OF LIFE

ENHANCING LIVES, CREATING VIBRANT COMMUNITIES

Quality of life is a cornerstone of the Imagine Leeds comprehensive
plan, shaping the city’'s vision for a vibrant, inclusive, and healthy future.
As a guiding principle, it emphasizes creating spaces and opportunities
that enhance residents’ well-being, from access to parks and recreational
facilities to safe, affordable housing and thriving neighborhoods. By
prioritizing quality of life, the plan ensures that Leeds becomes a city where
people can live, work, and play in an environment that fosters physical,
mental, and social health, making it an attractive and livable place for all.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

DRIVING GROWTH, BUILDING PROSPERITY

Another key pillar of the plan is supporting the city's economic environment,
driving the city’s vision for growth and long-term prosperity. To foster
a diverse and resilient economy, the plan includes recommendations
that support job creation, attracting businesses, and supporting local
entrepreneurs. The plan prioritizes equitable access to economic
opportunities for all residents, while enhancing Leeds’ competitiveness
on a regional scale. Through strategic investments in infrastructure,
innovation, and workforce development, the plan's goals will strengthen
the city’s foundation and promote a prosperous future for its communities.

SUSTAINABILITY

THRIVING TODAY, PRESERVING TOMORROW

Sustainability is a core principle of the plan, keeping environmental,
social, and fiscal responsibility at the forefront of policy and project
recommendations. The plan emphasizes the need for sustainable growth
that balances development with the protection of natural resources and
prioritizes resilience to climate and economic stresses. By integrating green
infrastructure, streamlined governance, and eco-friendly practices, the
plan seeks to ensure Leeds’ resilience in the face of climate and economic
change. Sustainability is key to building a healthier, stable, and more livable
city for current and future generations.

EQUITY

EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES, OPPORTUNITY FOR ALL

Equity is central to the goals and recommendations of this comprehensive
plan, guiding efforts to create a fair and inclusive city where everyone has
access to opportunities and resources. The plan emphasizes addressing
internal disparities in housing, access, health, and economic mobility,
ensuring that all residents — regardless of background or neighborhood —
benefit from the city's growth and development.



PLANNING PROCESS

DISCOVERY

Getting to know the city...

The initial phase of the planning process involves
extensive demographic and geospatial research
to identify the city's trends, conditions, needs, and
opportunities.

Census / economic data analysis
- Stakeholder / project team input
Mapping analysis

VISIONING

Looking to the future...

The following phase involves an intensive, multi-modal
community outreach campaign to actively engage
residents in establishing a vision for the ways in which
they want to see the community improve.

In-person public meetings / engagement activities
- Digital outreach + engagement
Public confirmation of vision + priorities

IDEATION

Creating ideas for how to get there...

The next phase of the planning process involves a
collaborative brainstorming of ideas for projects and
actions that can help to achieve the vision for the city's
future identified by the public in the visioning phase.

|dentifying solutions to key challenges
- Conceptualizing priority projects
Incorporating public input in project elements

IMPLEMENTATION

Aligning resources with priorities, for action...

The final phase of the process involves setting up the
transition from planning to action by allocating resources
and responsibilities to the appropriate entities in order
to facilitate the successful implementation of plan ideas.

Confirmation of public priorities
- ldentification of responsibility and resources
Action on individual plan recommendations

.........O‘ COMMUN,TYINPUT D.........:......O......O..........O......O.................O......’O........ COMMUN,TYINPUT I.O........




COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Public
Meetings

Project
Website PROJE'CT W'EBSITE ONLINE SURVEY
www.imagineleeds.com 232 RESPONSES
' One method of outreach and education was the creation The most widespread method of engagement was the
of a project website with comment form where additional distribution of a digital survey for residents to provide
d materials related to plan process and production were feedback and ideas for the city's future regardless of their
restaen ts Online posted for public review. ability to attend the in-person public meetings.
Survey
Project Team MAJOR THEMES FROM COMMUNITY INPUT
Meetings
RETAIL + BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
PUBLIC MEETING 1 11 JAN 2024
Residents frequently mentioned the need for new retail stores, restaurants, grocery
KICKOFF + VISIONING stores, and lodging to stimulate local economic growth. Restaurants and entertainment
The first public meeting for the planning process was businesses were the most commonly requested business typologies.

held at Leeds High School, with roughly 50 residents

in attendance. Residents were given an introduction to DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION

the planning process. They broke into small groups to

A significant number of residents expressed concerns about the state of progress in
write a vision statement for their ideal version of Leeds, revitalizing downtown, viewing it as a missed opportunity for community improvement.

participated in group mapping exercises identifying Residents want mixed-use housing and a walkable district with nighttime options.

strong/ weak places, and identified key challenges.

ATHLETIC + RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

PUBLIC MEETING 2 20 JUN 2024
MID-PROCESS REVIEW

The second public meeting for the planning process
was held at Leeds City Hall, with roughly 20 residents

in attendance. Participants engaged in an immersive A HOUSING + GROWTH
exercise in which they were able to review the preliminary

goals for the plan and vote on the importance of each

idea. This feedback was crucial to helping determine the M

final priority assigned to each of the plan's goals.




RESEARCH + ANALYSIS

THE PROJECT TEAM CONDUCTED A SERIES OF ANALYSES ON THE TRENDS AND
CONDITIONS DEFINING THE NEEDS AND GROWTH POTENTIAL OF THE CITY.

This included a broad array of research on physical conditions as well as demographic research utilizing sources
such as the US Census, state governmental agencies, etc. Demographic analyses were conducted at the block group
level to uncover internal disparities in the city in order to better target the plan’s individual recommendations to the

specific areas and neighborhoods where they are most needed. A few of the key findings are shown below.

CITYWIDE CONDITIONS ANALYSIS

EXISTING LAND USE

CITYWIDE: 7,184 undeveloped acres
Land use is the single most important factor in
determining the city's existing form as well as its
potential for future physical and economic growth.
With 51% of the city's total area still undeveloped and
ample opportunities for additional infill development
within the city's existing footprint, Leeds has
enormous potential for residential and business
development. With a vibrant downtown and historic
neighborhoods, Leeds has all the elements of a

“complete” community, and with lots of room to grow.

LAND DEVELOPMENT CONSTRAINTS
CITYWIDE: 2,201 constrained acres
Another important growth potential factor taken
into consideration when developing the plan's
recommendations is environmental constraints on
the development of some land. Floodplains (shown
light blue at left) and steep slopes (20%+, shown red
at left) are sensitive areas where development should
be avoided.
1,095 floodplain acres

1,106 steep slope acres

BLOCK LEVEL DEMOGRAPHIC ANALYSIS

POPULATION DENSITY

CITYWIDE: 5349 people/mi*

Population density is highest in the areas highlighted on
the map (750+ people/ mi?). These areas should support
amenities such as parks and schools, with an emphasis

on enhancing walkability.

HOMEOWNERSHIP RATE

CITYWIDE: 74%

Homeownership is lowest in the areas highlighted on
the map (less than 60%). Efforts should be made to
enhance opportunities for homeownership in these

areas, through new housing and assistance programs.

SHARE OF MIDDLE DENSITY HOUSING UNITS
CITYWIDE: 13% (~700 units)

The share of non-single family detached units is highest

in the areas highlighted on the map (25% +). Missing
middle housing options are concentrated in this small

area and should be expanded in other areas of the city.

POVERTY RATE

CITYWIDE: 16%

The share of residents living in households below the
federal poverty line is highest (20% +) in the highlighted
areas. These areas should be targeted for revitalization

and economic assistance programs.



15

’/"‘b AN, yr‘\ 7,

v Y

SMART GROWTH HOUSING DIVERSITY

This section of the comprehensive plan is
designed to guide the city towards sustainable
and strategic development, embracing the
principles of environmentally and fiscally
responsible growth. By prioritizing smart
growth and retrofitting urban sprawl, we aim to
create more vibrant, complete neighborhoods.
Central to this vision is the importance of
housing diversity: by providing a range of
housing options — from affordable units to
upscale developments — we can accommodate
the varied needs of our residents and attract new
families and businesses. Economic development
also plays a vital role in this growth strategy.
By supporting spaces for local businesses and

attracting new enterprises, we will enhance

Growtihh

7
) 7

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INFRASTRUCTURE

job opportunities and grow the local economy,
ensuring that all residents benefit from the city's
prosperity. Enhanced infrastructure in key

growth areas is an additional area of focus.

This section includes conceptual development
scenarios for strategic growth areas throughout
Leeds, showcasing innovative design and land
use strategies that align with our vision for
a thriving city. By integrating smart growth
principles with diverse housing options, a robust
economy, and essential infrastructure, we can
create a cohesive, dynamic environment that not
only meets the needs of current residents but

also attracts future generations.




16

P runciples

7 ¢

Promoting sustainable growth patterns

Encouraging development patterns that are environmentally and economically
sustainable, energy-efficient, and resilient. This includes focusing on mixed-use, transit-

oriented development to reduce urban sprawl and minimize environmental impact.

Enhancing the diversity and affordability
of the housing stock

Ensuring a diverse range of housing options that are affordable for residents of all
income levels by creating inclusive communities that address local housing needs and

mitigate displacement.
Supporting economic development and

job creation
Fostering a vibrant economy by attracting businesses, supporting local
entrepreneurship, and creating job opportunities. This includes planning for commercial,
industrial, and mixed-use areas that promote economic growth.

Enhance infrastructure and public services

Ensuring that infrastructure, such as roads, utilities, and public services, keeps pace with

growth. This emphasizes the need to upgrade and expand infrastructure to support new

development and maintain a high quality of life for local residents.

g\

Develop downtown as a
higher-density, mixed-

use, walkable district

Support the ongoing
development of Exit 140
as a regional destination
district

Support new
development that
enhances commercial

opportunities at Exit 144

Revitalize the highway
commercial district

along Parkway Drive

Develop a
neighborhood-scale
commercial hub at
Zeigler Rd and Hwy 119

Develop a network of
walkable neighborhoods

in the Grand River area



17

Area Popul

*by censu

TRUSSVILLE

(1 / ’I‘A‘fr’ .
TRENDS + CONDITIONS

Leeds is experiencing sustained growth in population, housing, and job opportunities, reflecting its appeal
as a vibrant and evolving community. With an increasing number of residents, the demand for housing

units has risen, leading to expanded residential development. At the same time, Leeds is experiencing

_____________

a surge in job creation, thanks to new businesses and the expansion of existing industries. However,
continued growth also brings challenges. The city must carefully manage the impact on services such IRONDALE
as public safety, schools, transportation, and utilities. As more residents and businesses move into
Leeds, the demand for city services will grow, placing additional pressure on existing infrastructure.
Proactive planning is essential to ensure that growth remains sustainable while preserving the quality of
life for all residents. As shown in the map to right, growth pressures in and around Leeds are very high.
The following goals in this section are intended to manage this current and future growth to ensure a
continued high quality of life in the city.

(@D} substantialde/oll’ne / <-10%

ﬁdert}!‘e’é{/ecline
;tablé 3

moderate growth

/ -9.9% to -2.6%
/ -2.5% to 2.5%

/ 2.6% to 9.9%

() substantial growth / >10%
6 67 4,563 |
residents in 2022... housing units in 2022... local jobs in 2022...
up by 1,032, or 9%, since 2010 up by 353, or 7%, since 2010 up by 832, or 22%, since 2010
Major Growth / Development
2000 2004 2008 2012 2016 2020 2024
Historical Population Trends Housing Stock Composition, 2022 )
Mobile Homes €
14,000
12,324 Avartments BARBER BASS SHOPS OF ~700 acre HUBBELL BUC-EE’S
12000 s ’ 8% MOTORSPORTS PRO  GRAND  GRAND RIVER EXPANSIONS
- Triplex/ Quadplex 2o SHOPS  RIVER ANNEXATION
9,946 >
10,000 - Duplex
osso g | 2T :a k NEW HIGH NEW PRIMARY
ingle Family Attache \.' SCHOOL SCHOOL
G:000) 6,991 / \

6162 /

\\ 2
6,000 /

- 5new / expanding subdivisions, 100's of new homes
«  Grand River Technology Park development

e v 290 5 « 103 acres of city-owned land in Grand River for commercial development
! o . . . . .
//Tr : - 275 acres of city-owned land in Grand River for residential and park development
2,000 5 B
mo Single Family Detached - TA Associates downtown expansion
250 | 50 | o2 1,60 . .
pulo «  Senior Center renovation
1890 1900 1910 1920 1930 1940 1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 . 14 downtown lofts under olevelopment \‘l

NN
« Norman Dr apartment development =( 'i\ B




GOWL iz

Ol

Develop downtown as a higher-

New Commercial

Leeds City Park = Development

New Mixed Use
Development

New Parks and
Recreational Spaces

Please note this graphic is a
conceptual representation of

downtown’s growth potential

density, mixed-use, walkable
1 /district.

LD

—

through infill/ redevelopment and
should not be construed as a final

development design or proposal.

existing historic commercial buildings

mixed use development infill

PRIORITY: HIGH DURATION: 1O+ years

civic / institutional buildings

missing middle residential infill

park / green space

Leeds aims to transform its downtown into a higher-density, mixed-use, walkable district that respects its o o
other existing buildings

historic fabric while enhancing the city's urban lifestyle offerings. This goal prioritizes preserving the character
of lLeeds' main street district, promoting denser development around the existing core, and integrating

commercial and residential uses to create an active, mixed-use environment. Key goals include increasing : gt
1111 Ashville Rd -

the downtown residential population through varied housing options as well as revitalization/ urbanization Aive % Rl pient

of the area between the railroad tracks, ensuring it serves as an active, connected space within the district.
Downtown adjacent neighborhoods will be reinforced with missing middle infill housing, providing affordable
and diverse residential options that respect neighborhood character, all in walking distance of downtown.
To support the activation of the downtown district, pedestrian infrastructure will be improved, allowing residents and
visitors to move easily throughout the downtown area. This plan addresses the need for urbanization of the historic

downtown, creating a vibrant, accessible hub that balances new development with the community's historic identity.

Parkway Dr, Ashville Rd, 9 St -
Gateway Signage / Beautification

1400 9* St -
Mixed Use City Hall Redevelopment

POLICIES + ACTIONS:

1. Preserve existing historic commercial buildings 6. Redevelop the city hall block as a mixed-use
2. Increase the permitted density of downtown municipal complex
development 7. Develop a new state-of-the-art library facility
3. Expand and urbanize the downtown area 8. Support development of nightlife businesses
between the railroad tracks and activities
4. Densify downtown adjacent residential 9. Prioritize pedestrians in the design of streets : Tl ™ o
N/ neighborhoods with missing middle housing 10. Work with Lehigh Cement to develop a potential Farley Ave - 8409 / 8425 Ciscero Davis Ave

5. Promote mixed-use development typologies

downtown park space on underutilized property

Townhomes / Missing Middle Housing

Structured Parking




s growth potential

)

Please note this graphic is a
conceptual representation of
development design or proposal.

downtown

.a
<
S

+
<
V
g
S

RO
S
N
S

<
V
2

>

&<

£

=<
S
s
3
N

<

4

should not be construed as a final

\\
%%%@;.

i fa




GO'WL iz

02

Support the ongoing

development of Exit 140 as a oy
regional destination district

PRIORITY: MEDIUM  DURATION: 5-210 years

Exit 140 is becoming a leading regional destination district and must leverage key attractions like the
Shops of Grand River, Barber Motorsports, Buc-ee’s, and Bass Pro. By adding new commercial and
entertainment developments around these anchors, Exit 140 will grow as a hub of economic activity. An
important opportunity is a mixed-use expansion of the Shops of Grand River on adjacent land. Available
land owned by Bass Pro also offers prime opportunities for large retailer outparcels, while landscape
improvements around the highway interchange will enhance the area’s visual appeal as a gateway to the city.
Akey policyforthe areais extending Higrove Pkwy to Barber Motorsports Pkwy, creatingarear access roadthat willopen
upadditionallandfordevelopmentalongRex Lake Rd. Pedestrianinfrastructure will also be prioritized between Rex Lake
RdandGrand River Pkwy, strengtheningacrucial link betweenthe main body of the cityand the growing Grand Riverarea.
New developments near Barber Motorsports will bring in high-end lodging, a Southern Museum of Flight campus,
and a technology park. This positions Exit 140 as a core part of Leeds’ growth strategy, blending retail, recreation, and

residential opportunities.

POLICIES + ACTIONS:

1. Improve gateway aesthetics with landscaping lodging to support tourism

and gateway signage at the exit 6. Expand and enhance commercial development
2. Provide wayfinding for the area and to downtown at Grand River
3. Support commercial development along Rex 7. Support multifamily and greenfield traditional
Lake Road neighborhood development in the area
4. Landscape shoulders and medians along divided 8. Improve pedestrian connectivity between Rex

portion of Rex Lake Road Lake Road and Grand River Parkway

5. Leverage regional destinations with higher end

A N
Shops at Grand River -
Mixed Use Expansion

Bass Pro Blvd -
Outparcel Development

Grand River Technology Park -
Museum of Flight + Tech Hub

Rex Lake Rd -
Multifamily Development

Please note this graphic is a
conceptual representation of Exit
140’s growth potential through
infill/ redevelopment and should not
be construed as a final development

design or proposal.

existing buildings

I new commercial development
multifamily development
office / tech park development
museum destination
destination lodging development

traditional neighborhood development

Grand River Blvd Extension -

Expanded Commercial Development ~

Barber Motorsports Pkwy -
High End Destination Lodging

Exit 140 Interchange -
Gateway Signage / Beautification

US Steel Lands
Neighborhood Developments




GO'WL iz

O 3 o

Support new development
that enhances commercial i

opportunities at Exit 144

PRIORITY: LOW DURATION: 5-10 years

The city should prioritize improvements to the Exit 144 area to create a safer, more efficient, and vibrant
commercial corridor that serves as a true gateway into the community. Addressing the corridor's frequent
accidents and traffic challenges, access management should be improved by utilizing existing rear service
roads for business entry, allowing for reduced curb cuts along the main road and smoother traffic flow.
To support commercial activity, integrated housing development is crucial. A key piece of this strategy is the
redevelopment of Cedar Springs Shopping Center. By repurposing this site and adjacent land, Leeds can create a
development similar to Hoover's Stadium Trace Village, successfully combining retail, dining, and residential space.
Extending Maxey Drive to Whitfield Avenue is another key infrastructure improvement, providing a
new access road that opens up valuable land for development. Additionally, the city should relocate
and update Fire Station 2 to support redevelopment on Maxey Dr. Another opportunity for the area
is the development of land between Cedar Grove Rd and the US 4n corridor, including commercial

infill on Sharp Dr and medium to high density residential development along Cedar Grove Rd.

POLICIES + ACTIONS:

1. Improve gateway aesthetics with landscaping highway corridor aesthetics

and gateway signage at the Exit 144 interchange 6. Promote missing middle housing development
Provide wayfinding for the area and to downtown between Sharp Dr and Cedar Grove Rd
3. Consolidate excessive curb cuts for improved 7. Develop a floodplain park on Cedar Grove Rd

access management 8. Support mixed commercial and multifamily

4. Connect Maxey Dr to Hankins Ave to create a development east of Maxey Dr / Hankins Ave
new rear access road 9. Urban retrofit/ enhance the site of the Cedar

5. Elevate signage design regulations for improved Springs Shopping Center

SRRV
n‘bq:.a by

4C7eclar Grox;e Rd -

Floodplain Park along Little Cahaba : S

> ~ L o AN
Cedar Springs Shopping Cent
Retail + Residential Redevelopment

B B H 8

e

ST e G

b/w Cedar Grove Rd + Sharp Dr - -

Missing Middle Housing

Please note this graphic is a
conceptual representation of Exit
144’s growth potential through
infill/ redevelopment and should not
be construed as a final development

design or proposal.

existing buildings

walkable retail center development
new commercial development
multifamily development

park / green space

municipal facilities (fire station)

e pERARTIVENT

Maxey Drive -
Repositioned/ Updated Fire Station

Weaver Way -
Neighborhood Extension




...Proposed Single Family
@ Housing Development

o v SN [ T oot Tt o : T,
87 N O s SR TN
< < = —y, ¥ s - . O ) e : i S ; >
(~N . ! - : ¢ ED S Y Proposed Mixed Use 5 E| 'y, - L Alo_r]g &
= : 3 & S Bevelopment = . Abandoned Rail Line
. . T i ! - ; o » : i T ® ' N
*® ‘ y
L/
- P 2

Along ParkwayDr

Revitalize the highway

Proposed Cahaba
= River Trail

Please note this graphic is a

commercial district along o e A

area’s growth potential through

infill/ redevelopment and should not

°
P a r kway D r I Ve be construed as a final development

design or proposal.

existing buildings
mixed-use infill development

PRIORITY: MEDIUM  DURATION: 5-10 years _ , ,‘

office development

The city should transform Parkway Drive into a thriving, walkable, urban commercial corridor park / green space
. . . issi iddl idential infill
that serves as an attractive gateway to downtown Leeds. This wurban highway should be missing middle residential in
municipal facilities

reshaped as a multirmodal corridor that balances vehicular access with a more urban form.
Opportunities  include  the  catalytic  redevelopment of  strategic  sites, such as the Food
Giant/ CVS property, to create a walkable, mixed-use node to anchor the district. The Little Cahaba River - ~ Frisco Ave -

. . . e . . . s . R tional G Trail R